
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

October 7, 2015 5
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 8
Warrants

Accounts Payable 11
Resolution Adjusting Monthly Stipend of Planning Commission
Members

Resolution - PC Stipend 21
Monthly Investment Report Ending September 30, 2015

Investment Report 22
Presentation of the City of Kerman 2014/2015 Auditor’s Report
and Financial Statements

Staff Report - Auditor's Report 24

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, October 21, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER COMMUNICATION 
DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 
 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation 
or inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be 
used to recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no 
one steps forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our 
thoughts on how best to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 
To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 
1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

 
REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 

 
This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on 
items of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the 
Council on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and 
the Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 
  

2



 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by 
one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion 
is desired, a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be 
removed from the Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: October 7, 2015   
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: September 13, 2015 - September 26, 2015: $128,314.98; Retro Pay: 
$553.26; Overtime: $13,675.11; Standby: $1,348.30; Comp Time Earned: 37.50      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 7311-7394: $318,269.44 
 

2. Excepting - Sebastian: 7343 $3,111.52 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Adjusting Monthly Stipend of Planning Commission Members (JK) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution adjusting monthly stipend of 
Planning Commission members.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Resolution - PC Stipend     
 

E. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending September 30, 2015 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as presented     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Investment Report     
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 None  

3



 
4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

A. SUBJECT: Presentation of the City of Kerman 2014/2015 Auditor’s Report and Financial 
Statements (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion approve the City of Kerman 2014/2015 
Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements as presented.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Auditor's Report  
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Katey's Kids Park Update (PG) 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORT 

A. Kerman Ag Expo – Wednesday, October 28, Kerckoff Park, 7 a.m. – 7 p.m. 

B. Trunk and Treat – October 31, Kerckoff Park, 6:30 p.m. 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6   
 

A. Public Employee Appointment Title: City Manager  

B. Conference with Labor Negotiators City Designated Representatives: Mayor Hill and 
Councilmember Armstrong Regarding Unrepresented Employee Position: City 
Manager Candidate 

 
COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
The agenda packet is available for review 72 hours prior to the meeting at the city clerk’s office and on 
the city website. Items received at the meeting will be available for review at the city clerk’s office. 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

4



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, October 7, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: Gary Yep (GY) 
Also Present: City Attorney Cantú, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, 
Finance Director, Public Works Director 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:35 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 
except GY 

• Invocation SH 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved 
RA/BN  
(4-0-1) GY 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Recognition of Jared Christopherson's Katey's Kids Park Eagle Scout Project  Presented 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL  

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 

Approved 
excepting 
7133, 7234, 
7280 NF/BN 
(4-0-1) GY 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll  

Payroll Report: August 30 - September 12, 2015:   

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented.  

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1. Nos. 7161-7310; 2. Excepting Sebastian 7133, 7234, 7280 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers 
as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

Approved 
7133, 7234, 
7280 NF/BN 
(3-0-2) 
GY/RA 
Employee 

5



D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreement with the Madera Police 
Department for the Use of the Kerman Police Department's Firearms Range 
Facility (JKB) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion approve resolution agreement with 
Madera Police Department for the use the Kerman Police Department Range 
located at 15485 W. Church Avenue, Kerman.     

Res 15-55 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Public Safety Employee Salary 
Scale to Include the Rank of Lieutenant (JKB) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution amending the 
Public Safety Employee Salary Scale to include the rank of Lieutenant.     

Res 15-56 

F. SUBJECT: Water Conservation Leak Notification Report (KM)  

RECOMMENDATION: Informational  

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Amending Condition No. 8 in Exhibit 'A' of Resolution 13-
68 Relating to Display of Beer Merchandise by Walmart Stores Inc. (JK) 

Approved 
RA/BN  
(4-0-1) GY 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion approve resolution amending 
Condition No. 8 in Exhibit ‘A’ of Resolution 13-68 relating to display of beer 
merchandise by Walmart Stores Inc. 

Res 15-57 

B. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Reimbursement Agreement for Walmart Off-
Site Improvements (JJ) 

Approved 
NF/BN  
(4-0-1) GY 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving the 
Reimbursement Agreement with Walmart Real Estate Business Trust for off-
site improvements installed for the development of their commercial 
shopping center. 

Res 15-58 

C. SUBJECT: Purchase of Seven (7) 2016 Ford Explorers Through the State of 
California Department of Government Services Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement for the Police Department (TJ) 

Approved 
NF/BN  
(4-0-1) GY 

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Finance Director to issue a Purchase 
Order for seven (7) 2016 Ford Explorers for a total of $198,471.50 to Folsom 
Lake Ford in Sacramento. 

 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Contract Planning Services (JK) Approved 
RA/NF  
(4-0-1) GY 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving proposal 
from Collins and Schoettler for contract planning services. 

 
 
Res 15-59 

6



E. SUBJECT: Planning Commission Stipend Survey (JK) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider Planning Commission’s request and 
direct staff as appropriate. 

Staff to come 
back to next 
meeting with 
resolution.  
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

7. CLOSED SESSION          
 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
 

A. Public Employee Appointment Title: City Manager 
B. Conference with Labor Negotiators 

City Designated Representatives: Mayor Hill and Councilmember 
Armstrong Regarding Unrepresented Employee Position: City Manager 
Candidate 

7:55 p.m. 

 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 9:50 p.m.  
 
No 
reportable 
action. 

8. ADJOURNMENT Approved 
BN/RA  
(4-0-1) GY 
9:51 p.m. 

 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: October 8, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 

 

7



8



9



10



Accounts Payable

User:

Printed: 

jalvarez

10/14/2015 12:01 PM

Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number

Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10814 ACCELA INC #774375 10/06/20157311
INV31571 FIN-MONTHLY WEB PAYMENTS JULY & AUG 2015  424.00

 424.00Total for Check Number 7311:

10021 ALERT O LITE 10/06/20157312
00014745 STRTC-HARV FEST TRAFFIC CNTRL RENTAL  401.73

 401.73Total for Check Number 7312:

10035 AQUA NATURAL SOLUTIONS 10/06/20157313
2357 SWR-MICROBE LIFT/SLUDGE AWAY  491.72

 491.72Total for Check Number 7313:

10040 AT&T MOBILITY 10/06/20157314
287249141774 PD-SEPT MDT WIRELESS SERVICE 8/20/15 TO 9/19/15  275.70

 275.70Total for Check Number 7314:

10908 KEN BOYD 10/06/20157315
00034171 AAC-CAT TRAP DEPOSIT REIMB TRAP #9  50.00

 50.00Total for Check Number 7315:

10617 C.A. REDING CO., INC. 10/06/20157316
352738 BPO-LANIER MP C3503 COPIER  142.75

 142.75Total for Check Number 7316:

10070 CALIFORNIA FRESNO OIL CO. 10/06/20157317
9241587 STRTC-ROAD OIL  32.14

 32.14Total for Check Number 7317:

10079 CAMCO 10/06/20157318
89923 WTR-SUPPLIES 3 LINE ITEMS <$50  16.66

89923 SWR-SUPPLIES 3 LINE ITEMS <$50  16.66

89923 WTR-RESPIRATOR  41.73

89923 SWR-RESPIRATOR  41.73

89923 LLD-SUPPLIES 3 LINE ITEMS <$50  6.68

 123.46Total for Check Number 7318:

10452 CITY OF FRESNO WMD 10/06/20157319
K090915 WTR-LAB ANALYSIS WATER  30.00

K090915 SWR-LAB ANALYSIS SEWER  76.00

K091615 WTR-LAB ANALYSIS WATER  30.00

K091615 SWR-LAB ANALYSIS SEWER  76.00

K092315 WTR-LAB ANALYSIS WATER  30.00

K092315 SWR-LAB ANALYSIS SEWER  76.00

Page 1AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number (10/14/2015 12:01 PM)

11

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10814
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10021
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10035
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10908
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10617
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10070
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10079
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10452


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 318.00Total for Check Number 7319:

10098 CLEANSTREET 10/06/20157320
79627 STRT-STRT CLEANING AFTER HF PARADE  765.00

 765.00Total for Check Number 7320:

10124 DELRAY TIRE & RETREADING 10/06/20157321
478615 PD REP-4 STOCK TIRES FOR PD VEHICLES  463.19

 463.19Total for Check Number 7321:

10445 DELTA LIGHTING PRODUCTS INC. 10/06/20157322
530512 CTC-LIQUID ENZYME PROPRIETARY  559.92

 559.92Total for Check Number 7322:

10141 EAST BAY TIRE CO. 10/06/20157323
1199345 VE REP-ALIGNMENT #1476  165.09

 165.09Total for Check Number 7323:

10154 FASTENAL COMPANY 10/06/20157324
CAFR253781 VE SUPPL-SUPPLIES 2 LINE ITEMS <$50  11.30

CAFR253781 PARKS-SUPPLIES 4 LINE ITEMS <$50  63.90

CAFR253781 WTR-SUPPLIES 1 LINE ITEM <$50  5.35

CAFR253781 STRTC-SUPPLIES 2 LINE ITEMS <$50  29.89

CAFR253781 LLD-SUPPLIES 1 LINE ITEM <$50  11.16

CAFR253781 STRTC-6 ORANGE VESTS  126.58

 248.18Total for Check Number 7324:

10158 FRANKLIN MILLER 10/06/20157325
27729 SWR-SHAFT IDLE  350.00

27729 SWR-BEARING BALL  115.00

27729 SWR-CARTRIDGE BRG  745.00

27729 SWR-FREIGHT & TAX  121.52

 1,331.52Total for Check Number 7325:

10165 FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY 10/06/20157326
09172015 WTR-UTILITY AGREEMENTS FOR WATER SERVICE  750.00

 750.00Total for Check Number 7326:

10169 FRESNO PET CEMETERY 10/06/20157327
24172 AAC-11 ANIMAL CARCASSES DISPOSED OF + PICK UP  131.50

 131.50Total for Check Number 7327:

10170 FRESNO POLICE DEPARTMENT 10/06/20157328
11232015 PD-OFFICER RODRIGUEZ POST PERISHABLE SKILLS CLASS  341.00

11232015 PD-OFFICER MENDOZA POST PERISHABLE SKILLS CLASS  341.00

 682.00Total for Check Number 7328:

10182 GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS 10/06/20157329
11302015 FIN-GFOA ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP  170.00

 170.00Total for Check Number 7329:

10191 H & J CHEVROLET INC 10/06/20157330

Page 2AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number (10/14/2015 12:01 PM)

12

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10098
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10124
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10445
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10141
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10154
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10158
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10165
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10169
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10170
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10182
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10191


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

CTCS56698 VE CONT SRV-THROTTLE/SENSOR REPAIR $1458  336.39

CVW21227-1 VE REP-HANDLE #1408  44.85

CVW21410 VE REP-PAD KIT #1459  128.79

 510.03Total for Check Number 7330:

10203 HUB INTERNATIONAL OF CA 10/06/20157331
00036081 CTC-SPECIAL EVENT INSURANCE SEPT 2015 N TILLY  107.40

 107.40Total for Check Number 7331:

10514 ICAD INC. 10/06/20157332
12133 SWR-REMOVE SEWER LIFT LEVEL TRANSMITTER  467.50

 467.50Total for Check Number 7332:

10205 INDEPENDENT STATIONERS 10/06/20157333
IN-0004562518 ADM-OFFICE SUPPLIES INK, BUDG, BIND & DIV  231.81

IN-000561789 CTC-DESK CALENDARS (2) DEPOSIT BAGS  35.91

IN-000561789 CS-DESK CALENDARS (6)  29.17

 296.89Total for Check Number 7333:

10220 JENSEN & PILEGARD #2 10/06/20157334
376808 VE CNTR SRV-SHARPEN HEDGE TRIMMER BLADES  42.00

376809 VE CNTR SRV-LABOR HEDGE TRIMMER  24.00

 66.00Total for Check Number 7334:

10229 JUDICIAL DATA SYSTEMS CRP 10/06/20157335
5554 PD-PARKING ACTIVITY FOR AUG 2015  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7335:

10238 KERMAN UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST 10/06/20157336
16103 CS-PG&E BALLFIELD LIGHTS GOLDENROD 7/15/15-8/13/15  1,596.29

16103 CS-PG&E BALLFIELD LIGHTS GOLDENROD 8/14/15-9/14/15  1,232.77

 2,829.06Total for Check Number 7336:

10239 KERWEST NEWSPAPERS 10/06/20157337
40388 WTR CONSERV-AD PART TIME WATER CONSERVATION  110.00

 110.00Total for Check Number 7337:

10487 LORA NEHRING 10/06/20157338
VARIOUS REC-INSTRUCTOR FEE ZUMBA SEPT 2015  486.50

VARIOUS REC-INSTRUCTOR FEE AQUA ZUMBA SEPT 2015  3.50

 490.00Total for Check Number 7338:

10282 OFFICE DEPOT 10/06/20157339
794423828001 BPO-OFFICE SUPPLIES  38.94

794423828001 BPO-OFFICE SUPPLIES  38.94

796222129001 SWR-FILE CABINET WWTP  81.16

796224659001 STRTC-COPY PAPER PW OFFICE  36.79

796224659001 SD-PAPER CLIPS PW OFFICE  5.05

796224659001 SWR-INK CARTRIDGE WWTP OFFICE  94.98

 295.86Total for Check Number 7339:

10285 ONTRAC 10/06/20157340

Page 3AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number (10/14/2015 12:01 PM)

13

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10203
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10514
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10205
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10220
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10229
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10238
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10239
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10487
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10282
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10285


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

8290372 BPO-PLAN CHECK OVERNIGHT DELIVERY FEES  99.36

 99.36Total for Check Number 7340:

10289 P.G.& E. 10/06/20157341
2881141119-9 CS-TRANSIT BUS FUEL SEPT  123.80

4939626163-5 VE-MONTHLY SERVICE 08/28/15-09/28/15  959.52

5467738309-0 VAR-200 HP WATER WELL #9  4,426.38

5467738309-0 VAR-WATER WELL #12  122.99

5467738309-0 VAR-201 S VINELAND #14  5,223.62

5467738309-0 VAR-150 HP CITY WELL #10  721.70

5467738309-0 VAR-WELL #15 PUMP STATION  6,400.72

5467738309-0 VAR-920 S GOLDENROD #17  9,238.75

5467738309-0 VAR-WASTE WATER LIFT PUMP  158.34

5467738309-0 VAR-WWTP  121,269.39

5467738309-0 VAR-STORM WATER LIFT PUMP  49.78

574130969-0 BPO-MONTHLY SERVICE 08/26/15-09/24/15  531.53

 149,226.52Total for Check Number 7341:

10915 BEATRIZ RODRIGUEZ 10/06/20157342
00036128 CTC-RENTAL REFUND CTC 10/5/15  400.00

 400.00Total for Check Number 7342:

10332 SEBASTIAN 10/06/20157343
10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  560.81

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  17.16

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  25.74

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  214.52

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  2.15

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  7.72

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  197.36

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  300.33

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  64.36

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  81.52

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  214.52

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  321.78

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  49.34

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  214.52

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  104.00

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  72.94

10341544 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE 9/21/15-10/20/15  137.29

10345007 PD-SEPT T 1-LINE  422.86

10345378 VAR-MONTHLY BURGLAR ALARM SERVICE-3408 9/21/15-10/20/15  51.30

10345379 VAR-MONTHLY BURGLAR ALARM SERVICE-3409 9/21/15-10/20/15  51.30

 3,111.52Total for Check Number 7343:

10914 SIERRA HR PARTNERS 10/06/20157344
44411 ADM-BACKGROUND CITY MANAGER FINALISTS  748.00

 748.00Total for Check Number 7344:

10337 SLUMBERGER LUMBER 10/06/20157345
B261553 PARKS-CREDIT -4.70

B262021 PD MAINT-SUPPLIES 1 INVOICE <$50  30.29

B262629 PROTEUS-6 GARDEN HOES  84.35

B262673 PROTEUS-2 PAIRS SAFETY GLASSES  8.61

B262922 PARKS-SHOVEL, HANDLE, GFI, ELEC BOX  51.85

B263046 BLDG-STEPLADDER  59.51

Page 4AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number (10/14/2015 12:01 PM)

14

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10289
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10915
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10332
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10914
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10337


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

B263055 PARKS-REFLECTOR, ELEC TAPE, EXT CORD  77.67

B263173 PROTEUS-9X12 DROP CLOTH  27.04

B263232 WTR-CONCRETE FOR WELL #15  58.44

B263643 BLDG-SUPPLIES 1 INVOICE <$50  14.05

C161539 STRTC-SUPPLIES 1 INVOICE <$50  4.93

C161945 VE SUPPL-SUPPLIES 2 INVOICES <$50  6.30

C161968 LLD-SUPPLIES 2 INVOICE <$50  44.62

C162177 SWR-SUPPLIES 1 INVOICE <$50  34.69

C162508 VE EQUIP-SUPPLIES 1 INVOICE <$50  48.66

C162539 WTR-CONCRETE FOR WELL #15  142.85

VARIOUS WTR-SUPPLIES 4 INVOICES <$50  82.67

VARIOUS PARKS-SUPPLIES 7 INVOICES <$50  82.32

VARIOUS CS-REPAIR SUPPLIES <$50  98.03

VARIOUS CS-REPAIR SUPPLIES <$50  255.22

VARIOUS S-REPAIR SUPPLIES  14.04

 1,221.44Total for Check Number 7345:

10754 SUPPLYWORKS 10/06/20157346
5145979-00 CTC-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES  123.35

 123.35Total for Check Number 7346:

10357 TAYLOR MADE IRRIGATION 10/06/20157347
10783 PARKS-SPRINKLER SUPPLIES  34.76

10792 PARKS-SPRINKLER SUPPLIES  63.45

 98.21Total for Check Number 7347:

10389 VALLEY AIR CONDITIONING 10/06/20157348
32870 CS-QTLY PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE CITY HALL  575.00

32871 CS-QTLY PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE POLICE DEPT  375.00

32872 CS-QTLY PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE CTC  580.00

32873 CS-QTLY PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE SENIOR CENTER  312.50

 1,842.50Total for Check Number 7348:

10412 XEROX CORPORATION 10/06/20157349
081575949 ADM-COPIER LEASE  267.99

081575949 ADM-20,526 PRINT CHARGES @.006400  131.37

081575949 ADM-TAX  32.84

 432.20Total for Check Number 7349:

10616 AAA QUALITY SERVICES, INC. 10/14/20157350
00230015 CS-FENCE RENTAL KATEY'S KIDS PARK  81.17

 81.17Total for Check Number 7350:

10917 BEST UNIFORMS 10/14/20157351
39604 PD-2 LIFE SAVING MEDALS T CHAPMAN & E RODRIGUEZ  162.32

39604 PD-CREDIT -21.59

 140.73Total for Check Number 7351:

10067 CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS 10/14/20157352
09302015 FIN-BLDG STANDARDS ADMN FEE 3RD QTR 2015  196.20

 196.20Total for Check Number 7352:

10098 CLEANSTREET 10/14/20157353
79839 STRT-MONTHLY SWEEP FEE SEPT 2015  6,672.90

Page 5AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number (10/14/2015 12:01 PM)

15

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10754
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10357
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10389
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10412
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10616
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10917
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10067
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10098


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 6,672.90Total for Check Number 7353:

10109 COUNTY OF FRESNO 10/14/20157354
083115 PD-AUG 2015 PARKING ACTIVITY  37.50

 37.50Total for Check Number 7354:

10717 DAVID CASTILLO, VORTAL ME 10/14/20157355
1029 ADM-MONTHLY WEB HOSTING & MTG OCTOBER  50.00

 50.00Total for Check Number 7355:

10126 DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION 10/14/20157356
09302015 FIN-STRONG MOTION 1ST QTR FY 15/16  538.31

 538.31Total for Check Number 7356:

10128 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 10/14/20157357
122811 PD-4 BLOOD ALCOHOL ANALYSIS  140.00

 140.00Total for Check Number 7357:

10654 DIVINE DESSERTS 10/14/20157358
390107 CC-OCT CC MEETINGS  30.00

 30.00Total for Check Number 7358:

10136 DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT 10/14/20157359
09302015 FIN-REMIT STATE FEE ON BUSINESS LICENSE  14.40

 14.40Total for Check Number 7359:

10154 FASTENAL COMPANY 10/14/20157360
CAFR253914 VE SUPPL-SUPPLIES 2 LINE ITEMS <$50  14.51

CAFR253914 PARKS-SUPPLIES 2 LINE ITEMS <$50  11.40

CAFR253914 LLD-SUPPLIES 2 LINE ITEMS <$50  10.02

CAFR253914 WTR-SUPPLIES 1 LINE ITEM <$50  5.35

CAFR253914 STRTC-SUPPLIES 3 LINE ITEMS <$50  38.01

 79.29Total for Check Number 7360:

10161 FRESNO COUNTY TREASURER 10/14/20157361
IN0208012 V/E-HAZ WASTE GENERATOR (SQG)  189.00

IN0208012 V/E-AUTO REP/MAINT MODEL PLAN  262.00

IN0208012 V/E-STATE CUPA OVERSIGHT CHARGE ACCT #AR0025295  35.00

 486.00Total for Check Number 7361:

10162 FRESNO COUNTY TREASURER 10/14/20157362
SO12993 PD-DISPATCHING SERVICE OCTOBER 2015  17,427.30

SO12994 PD-SEPT 2015 RMS/JMS/CAD ACCESS FEES  167.00

 17,594.30Total for Check Number 7362:

10175 G & K SERVICES, INC 10/14/20157363
MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  4.00

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  33.72

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  79.10

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  1,086.15

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  92.76

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  83.38

Page 6AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number (10/14/2015 12:01 PM)

16

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10109
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10717
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10126
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10128
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10654
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10136
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10154
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10161
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10162
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10175


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  2.38

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  13.05

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  16.34

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  122.33

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  24.44

MISC VAR-UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES  198.32

 1,755.97Total for Check Number 7363:

10199 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 10/14/20157364
1088-00018-2006 CS-GLOVES 5 PACK MULCH  37.80

8119007398423 CS-ADDITIONAL HANDRAIL BRACKET (2) KATEY'S KIDS PARK  42.60

 80.40Total for Check Number 7364:

10213 INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL INC 10/14/20157365
3067066 BPO-ICC MEMBERSHIP 2015  135.00

 135.00Total for Check Number 7365:

10230 KENT M KAWAGOE PHD 10/14/20157366
08312015 PD-PRE EMPLOYMENT PSYCH M BEYE  300.00

08312015 PD-PRE EMPLOYMENT PSYCH R RAIGOZA  300.00

08312015 PD-PRE EMPLOYMENT PSYCH A WALL  300.00

 900.00Total for Check Number 7366:

10239 KERWEST NEWSPAPERS 10/14/20157367
40402 CC-FULL PUB ORD 15-03 ROOFTOP SOLAR  720.00

40403 BPO-PL COMM PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 10/12/15  90.00

 810.00Total for Check Number 7367:

10918 ANNA LOPEZ 10/14/20157368
00034902 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND SCOUT HUT 10/11/15  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7368:

10678 MAC'S EQUIPMENT INC 10/14/20157369
129889 VE SUPPL-AIR FILTERS X4  78.79

130265 VE PD REP-BRAKE ROTOR/PAD PD VEHICLE  254.90

130303 VE PD REP-EMER SERV ROTOR KIT  254.90

130399 VE SUPPL-MECHANICAL GLOVES  16.22

130409 VE PD REP-BRAKE PADS #1471  74.45

130485 VE MAIN-AIR AND OIL FILTERS  112.42

130485 PD MAINT-OIL FILTERS  40.39

130522 PD MAINT-OIL FILTER  6.73

130553 VE REP-WHEEL CENTER CAP #1459  64.91

130563 VE PD REP-BRAKE ROTOR/PAD PD VEHICLE  254.90

130606 VE EQUIP-BRAKE CATHE TIPS  32.46

 1,191.07Total for Check Number 7369:

10261 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL, INC 10/14/20157370
09302015 SWA-SEPTEMBER SW CHARGES  89,961.93

09302015 SWA-CITY PORTION FOR SEPTEMBER 2015 -17,992.39

09302015 SWA-ROLL OFF/FRANCHISE FEES -400.00

 71,569.54Total for Check Number 7370:

10265 MONTOY LAW CORPORATION 10/14/20157371
10052015 CC-SEPT 2015 LEGAL FEES  7,094.50

Page 7AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number (10/14/2015 12:01 PM)

17

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10199
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10213
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10230
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10239
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10918
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10678
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10261
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10265


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 7,094.50Total for Check Number 7371:

10276 NATIONAL METER & AUTOMATION 10/14/20157372
S1063841.001 FIN-PURCHASE 10 1" METERS-RESALE  3,139.91

 3,139.91Total for Check Number 7372:

10286 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 10/14/20157373
3921-234301 VE REP-FUEL PUMP #1446  20.21

3921-234301 VE REP-RETURN WRONG PART -20.21

3921-234366 VE EQUIP-REPAIR KIT FOR BLOWER CASTING  16.29

3921-234509 VE EQUIP-GREASE CAPS FOR TORO MOWER  17.31

3921-236333 VE PD REP-AC BLOWER MOTOR  72.12

3921-236649 VE PD REP-BATTERY #1455  101.45

3921-236749 VE PD REP-DISC PADS $1455  82.82

3921-236905 VE PD REP-IGNITION COIL, SPARK PLUG #1447  55.47

 345.46Total for Check Number 7373:

10282 OFFICE DEPOT 10/14/20157374
776174527001 PD-FILE PROOF FILE CABINET  1,255.40

782255706001 PD-OFFICE SUPPLIES INK CARTRIDGES  0.10

796222129002 WTR-JOURNAL NOTEPAD  23.80

796649719001 PD-OFFICE SUPPLIES 6X9 ENVELOPES & LABEL TAPE  77.87

799025566-001 CS-COPY PAPER FOR SENIOR CTR  202.09

 1,559.26Total for Check Number 7374:

10289 P.G.& E. 10/14/20157375
3920400666-0 STRT-MONTHLY SERVICE 08/29/15-09/29/15  3,926.05

4055166878-9 LLD-INSTALLMENT LOAN LED  1,207.83

4055166878-9 LLD-MONTHLY SERVICE 08/2/15-09/28/15  1,444.16

4647279811-8 PD-SEPT 2015 PG&E BILL 09/1/15-9/30/15  1,859.74

6825025396-7 ADM-MONTHLY UTILITIES 9/1/15-9/30/15  1,508.68

 9,946.46Total for Check Number 7375:

10319 RENO'S HARDWARE 10/14/20157376
0057397 PARKS-PVC CUTTERS  57.25

0057778 LLD-HULA HOES, TRASH GRABBERS  97.33

0058005 PARKS-RAKES  71.40

0058121 PROTEUS-WORK BOOTS FOR PROTEUS  375.71

VARIOUS PARKS-SUPPLIES 3 INVOICES ,$50  48.93

 650.62Total for Check Number 7376:

10324 RIVERSIDE LANDSCAPE & NURSERY 10/14/20157377
82207 CS-PLANTS FOR KATEY'S KIDS PARK  144.84

 144.84Total for Check Number 7377:

10880 SIEMENS INDUSTRY 10/14/20157378
 Mag Meter - Part #7ME6580-5RJ14-2AA2  5,541.25

Transmitter MAG5000 - Part # 7ME6910-2CA10-1AA0  1,525.00

Mounting Accessories - Part # FDK:083F5037  578.75

Connection Plate for transmitter - Part #A5E02559813  227.00

Nickel Brass Plated Adapters - Part # A6X30005543  73.44

Submersible Kit for Terminal Box - Part # FDK:085U0220  141.25

Standard Coil and Electrode Cable per Foot - Part # FDK:011STCAB  50.00

Special Electrode cable when using Empty Pipe - per foot - Part#  75.00

Shipping  1,044.14

Page 8AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number (10/14/2015 12:01 PM)

18

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10276
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10286
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10282
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10289
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10319
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10324
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10880


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 9,255.83Total for Check Number 7378:

10335 SILVA FORD MADERA 10/14/20157379
24442 VE PD REP-SOLENOID FOR #1455  122.84

 122.84Total for Check Number 7379:

10338 SMITH AUTO 10/14/20157380
220984 VE SUPPL-CREDIT ON ACCOUNT -21.65

231385 VE EQUIP-BATTERY FOR CASE TRACTOR  108.17

233861 VE REP-SUPPLIES 1 INVOICE ,$50  5.81

VARIOUS WTR-SUPPLIES 3 INVOICES <$50  37.22

VARIOUS SWR-SUPPLIES 3 INVOICES <$50  37.21

VARIOUS VE SUPPL-2 INVOICES <$50  27.48

 194.24Total for Check Number 7380:

BP-SOLA SOLAR CITY INC 10/14/20157381
BP Refund Canceled Job 15-RES-0005 545 S Lum Dr  232.44

 232.44Total for Check Number 7381:

10754 SUPPLYWORKS 10/14/20157382
5150708-00 CTC-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES  788.27

 788.27Total for Check Number 7382:

10906 TAMARACK PEST CONTROL 10/14/20157383
0266008 CTC-PEST CONTROL SPRAY CTC  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7383:

10355 TARGET SPECIALTY PRODUCTS 10/14/20157384
PI0335800 LLD-SNAPSHOT PRE-EMERGENT 6 BAGS  690.00

 690.00Total for Check Number 7384:

10357 TAYLOR MADE IRRIGATION 10/14/20157385
10811 WTR-BACKFLOW SUPPLIES  24.79

 24.79Total for Check Number 7385:

10770 THE FRESNO BEE 10/14/20157386
09272015 CC-PH NOTICE MORATORIUM EXTENSION  142.97

 142.97Total for Check Number 7386:

10644 US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE 10/14/20157387
289052227 BPO-LANIER MP C3503 COPIER LEASE  149.35

 149.35Total for Check Number 7387:

10391 VALLEY FARM SUPPLY STORES 10/14/20157388
OFF15106101 SWR-5 TON GEAR PULLER  75.75

OFF1K106204 VE SUPPL-SUPPLIES 1 INVOICE <$50  10.79

OFF1K106232 WTR-SUPPLIES 1 INVOICE <$50  3.52

OFF1K106232 SWR-SUPPLIES 1 INVOICE <$50  3.51

OFF1K106235 PROTEUS-PUSH BROOMS/RAKES  125.45

OFF1K106253 LLD-POWER TRIM BLADE  107.68

OFF2K105811 PROTEUS-COWHIDE DEER SK GLOVES 7 PAIRS  114.64

OFF2K105817 PROTEUS-TRASH CANS/PRUNING SHEARS  215.37

Page 9AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number (10/14/2015 12:01 PM)

19

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10335
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10338
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BP-SOLA
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10754
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10906
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10355
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10357
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10770
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10644
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10391


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

OFF2K105912 PARKS-HONDA CUTTER ASSEMB, NYLON  77.89

OFF2K105956 LLD-RAKES  66.95

OFF2K106055 LLD-POWER & TRIMMER HEADS 50%LLD  309.36

OFF2K106055 STRTC-POWER & TRIMMER HEADS  309.36

VARIOUS PARKS-SUPPLIES 6 INVOICES <$50  82.66

VARIOUS WTR-SUPPLIES 7 INVOICES <$50  62.69

VARIOUS SWR-2 INVOICES <$50  61.56

VARIOUS LLD-SUPPLIES 2 INVOICES <$50  41.07

 1,668.25Total for Check Number 7388:

10401 WALLYS TIRE AND WHEEL 10/14/20157389
1-4379 VE REP-TIRE REPAIR #1404  17.00

 17.00Total for Check Number 7389:

10404 WELLS FARGO BANK 10/14/20157390
1241801 FIN-ANNUAL PFA ADMINISTRATION FEE  1,500.00

 1,500.00Total for Check Number 7390:

10406 WEST HILLS OIL, INC 10/14/20157391
49051 V/E-FUEL SEPT 16-30 1335.091 GALLONS  4,085.53

49051 V/E-B ARREDONDO TRANSIT 84.177 GAL  260.27

 4,345.80Total for Check Number 7391:

10545 WILBERT BARCOMA 10/14/20157392
10192015 PD-3 COMMUTER LUNCHES  24.00

 24.00Total for Check Number 7392:

10900 WONDERWARE NORCAL 10/14/20157393
SCADA Software Renewal Quote#146216.2  1,538.94

SCADA Software Renewal Quote#146216.2  1,538.94

 3,077.88Total for Check Number 7393:

10412 XEROX CORPORATION 10/14/20157394
081575950 CS-REC DEPT COPIER SEPT 2015  350.21

 350.21Total for Check Number 7394:

Report Total (84 checks):  318,269.44

Page 10AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Number (10/14/2015 12:01 PM)

20

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10401
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10404
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10406
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10545
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10900
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10412


 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN ADJUSTING  
MONTHLY STIPEND OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 

 
 WHEREAS, at the request of the Planning Commission Chair, the City Council authorized 
staff to survey local cities to determine the compensation for Planning Commissioners for their 
services on the Planning Commission; and 

 WHEREAS, staff submitted its survey results to the City Council at its meeting of October 
7, 2015, and further approved the current $50.00 per meeting compensation to Kerman Planning 
Commissioners to be increased.    

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN RESOLVES: 

1. Each Planning Commissioner shall be paid seventy five dollars and no cents ($75.00) per 
meeting, to a maximum of two (2) meetings per month. 

2. No compensation will be awarded for a meeting to any Planning Commissioner who fails to 
attend that meeting, regardless of the reason; and the compensation paid to any Planning 
Commission Member for his or her duties as a Planning Commissioner shall not exceed One 
Hundred Fifty Dollars per month in the aggregate. 

 
3. This resolution shall become effective November 1, 2015. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Kerman held on the 21st day of October 2015 and passed at said meeting with the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Stephen B. Hill 
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

21



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of September 30, 2015 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00             (150,000.00)    -                   -                          1,487.67          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00               (50,000.00)      -                   -                          371.92             

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00               (97,000.00)      -                   534.96             

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00             (100,000.00)    -                   -                          350.96             

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00               (99,000.00)      -                   -                          773.56             

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00             (100,000.00)    -                   -                          1,134.25          

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00               95,000.00         95,076.00               131.71             

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00               51,000.00         51,173.91               341.42             

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00               48,000.00         48,171.36               333.24             

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,152.00             252.05             

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00               47,000.00         47,593.14               466.14             

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,408.00             495.89             

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00             200,000.00       202,340.00             1,865.21          

Ally Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 10/2/14 10/11/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,335.00             -                  

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.00% 11/12/14 11/14/16 96,000.00               96,000.00         96,248.64               -                  

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00               53,000.00         53,293.62               146.96             

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00             196,000.00       196,848.68             444.63             

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00               98,000.00         98,441.00               444.62             

Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,491.04             -                  

Cap One NA Mclean VA 615-030525-245 1.15% 7/22/15 7/24/17 -                          150,000.00      150,000.00       149,734.50             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00               98,000.00         99,063.30               826.15             

Whitney Bank Gulfport MS 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/12/15 8/14/17 -                          50,000.00        50,000.00         49,996.50               

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00             150,000.00       151,878.00             1,264.52          

Ally Bank Midvale UT CD 615-030525-245 1.25% 9/17/15 9/18/17 -                          99,000.00        99,000.00         99,016.83               

1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00               96,000.00         96,305.28               483.95             

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00               99,000.00         99,392.04               564.57             

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.25% 1/22/15 1/22/18 100,000.00             100,000.00       99,759.00               619.86             

Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,890.88             1,562.74          

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,257.92             625.10             

Discover Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.15% 4/8/15 4/9/18 98,000.00               98,000.00         97,248.34               -                  

Everbank CD Jacksonville FL 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/13/18 150,000.00             150,000.00       148,641.00             -                  

Rollstone Bank Fitchburg MA 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/16/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       245,718.40             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00               98,000.00         97,565.86               -                  

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00               97,000.00         97,864.27               817.72             

American Express Salt Lake City Ut 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/14/14 8/14/18 98,000.00               98,000.00         97,791.26               777.56             

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.55% 3/26/15 3/26/19 98,000.00               98,000.00         97,722.66               765.74             

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,741.52             -                  

BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00             200,000.00       200,168.00             -                  

ST Bank of India CD Chicago IL 615-030525-245 2.15% 8/18/15 8/19/19 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,275.00             

Discover Greenwood 615-030525-245 2.00% 9/30/15 9/30/19 100,000.00      100,000.00       99,924.00               

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 2.15% 11/13/14 11/13/19 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,273.00             -                  

Synchrony Draper UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 3/13/15 3/13/20 150,000.00             150,000.00       148,906.50             1,474.52          

JP Morgan Chase Bank 615-030525-245 2.10% 3/31/15 3/31/20 98,000.00               98,000.00         97,651.12               518.73             

Comenity Bank Jumbo Formerly World Finl Network Bank DE615-030525-245 2.10% 6/10/15 6/10/20 200,000.00             200,000.00       198,432.00             966.57             

Amex Centurion Salt Lake City Ut 615-030525-245 2.30% 6/24/15 6/24/20 52,000.00               52,000.00         51,462.32               -                  

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 2.20% 6/24/15 6/24/20 46,000.00               46,000.00         45,523.44               -                  

Capital One NA Mclean VA 615-030525-245 2.30% 8/12/15 8/12/20 -                          97,000.00        97,000.00         97,145.50               

Average Rate 1.45%
Subtotal - CD's 5,048,000.00          -                  -                        5,048,000.00    5,050,920.83          20,842.92        

22



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of September 30, 2015 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/15 99,000.00               99,000.00         99,000.00               162.24             

Local Agency Investment Fund
2,000,000.00   2,000,000.00    

Subtotal - LAIF -                          2,000,000.00   -                        2,000,000.00    -                          -                  

Central Valley Comm Bank CD

1.34 6/8/12 6/8/17 200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             227.61             

Total CD and Local Agency Investments 5,347,000.00          2,000,000.00   -                        7,347,000.00    5,349,920.83          21,232.77        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                          -                   

(City of Kerman) 152,606.85             152,606.85       152,606.85             -                  
Interest -                   

-                   -                  
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 152,606.85             -                  -                        152,606.85       152,606.85             -                  

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 3,606,160.43          3,606,160.43    
Interest 7/31/15 320.39             320.39              320.39             

8/31/15 103.27             103.27              103.27             
9/30/15 96.45               96.45                96.45               

-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 7/7/15 (50,000.00)      (50,000.00)       
7/10/15 (50,000.00)      (50,000.00)       
7/14/15 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
7/23/15 (150,000.00)    (150,000.00)     

To LAIF 7/28/15 (2,000,000.00) (2,000,000.00)  
9/17/15 (250,000.00)    (250,000.00)     

-                   
-                   
-                   

3,606,160.43          (2,599,479.89) -                        1,006,680.54    1,006,680.54          520.11             

Subtotal All City Investments 5,248,000.00          -                  -                        5,248,000.00    5,250,920.83          21,070.53        

Total Investments 5,499,606.85          2,000,000.00   -                        7,499,606.85    5,502,527.68          21,232.77        
Market Value Adjustment (1,997,079.17)         

2,000,000.00    
2,000,000.00    

-                   

23



  
 

 

City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: OCTOBER 21, 2015 

  

To: Mayor and City Council  

From: Toni Jones, Finance Director 

Subject: Presentation of the City of Kerman 2014/2015 Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Council by motion approve the City of Kerman 2014/2015 Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements as presented. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 

The City’s independent auditor, Bryant L. Jolley, CPA, has completed and submitted the audited financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2015. The purpose of the audit is to determine that the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States. A copy of the audited financial statements is enclosed with your agenda. Ryan P. Jolley will present 
the audited financial statements to the City Council. 
 

OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 

None 
 

DISCUSSION  
 
Staff is pleased to report that the audited financial statements do not contain any negative notes or audit findings 
raised by the auditor. Below are some highlights from the Management’s Discussion and Analysis prepared by staff 
beginning on Page 3 through 11 of the audited financial statements: 
 

Government Wide Statement of Net Position (Condensed) 

 

2015 2014

48,988,387$           48,655,676$           Government-wide total assets at fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 increased by $332,711 

which is .68% higher than fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

13,308,547$           11,611,775$           Government-wide total liabilities at fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 increased by 

$1,696,772 which is 12.75% more than fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

(489,656)$                Net of Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - Result of GASB68 requirement to record 

City's unfunded pension liability.

35,190,184$           37,043,901$           The Net Position (assets less liabilities) at fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 decreased 

by $1,853,717 which is 5.27% less than fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. The net 

position includes ($489,656) of deferred outflows/inflows of resources. Of the total 

amount $2,989,490 is unrestricted which is available to meet the City's ongoing 

commitments to citizens and creditors.

24



City Council Staff Report  
Presentation of the City of Kerman 2014/2015 Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements                                                            Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Government-wide the City’s net position declined by $1,853,717 over fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. 
  

Government Wide Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

 
 

Government-wide operating revenues for 2015 decreased by $549,699 and operating expenses decreased by 
$113,313 along with a Prior Period Adjustment of ($2,643,413) for a change in Net Position of ($1,853,717) for Fiscal 
Year ending 2015. 
 

The prior period adjustment was necessary to record City’s opening balance of the net pension liability due to the 
implementation of GASB No. 68. 
 

Government-wide cash and investments is $9,132,379 which is an increase of $1,111,619 compared to June 30, 
2014. 
 

The General Fund has a Reserve Balance of $3,198,901 as of June 30, 2015. This is an increase of $582,861 from 
the prior year (page 16).  
 

The City Council adopted a reserve policy by resolution September 17, 2014 for the purpose of establishing a target 
and minimum level of unreserved fund balance in the General Fund to protect against unanticipated circumstances 
and events resulting in revenue shortfalls or unexpected expenditures.  
 

Reserve Category Purpose Minimum Reserve 

Emergency Reserve Cover an emergency, unanticipated 
expense or cash flow needs 

25% of operating expenditures or 
$1,039,978 

Revenue Stability Reserve Cover any unanticipated drop in sales 
or property tax revenues 

15% of operating expenditures or 
$623,987 

Major Asset Repair and 
Replacement Reserve 

Cover any repairs and replacement of 
major facilities and equipment 

5% for repairs and 10% for 
replacement of operating 
expenditures or $623,987 

Undesignated Reserve Cover any discretionary expenditures 
approved by the Council 

Any amount remaining after 
meeting minimum reserves or 
$910,949 

 

The Change in Fund Net Position for the Proprietary Funds increased a net of $256,591 with Water at $93,456, Sewer 
$78,988, Disposal $107,735 and Storm Drain ($23,588). 
 

FISCAL IMPACT  
 

The presentation of the City of Kerman 2014/2015 Audited Financial Statements does not have a financial impact on 
the City, but it does report positive results from operations in fiscal year 2014/2015, with an increase of $582,282 to 
General Fund Reserves. 

2015 2014

Operating Revenues $ 11,057,686     $ 11,607,385          

Operating Expenses 10,267,990     10,381,303          

Increase in Net Position 789,696          1,226,082            

Prior Period Adjustment (2,643,413)      -                             

Net Position, Beginning of Year 37,043,901     35,817,819          

Net Position, End of Year 35,190,184     37,043,901          

25



City Council Staff Report  
Presentation of the City of Kerman 2014/2015 Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements                                                            Page 3 of 3 

 

 

The budget for fiscal year 2014/15 projected $230,000 of revenues in excess of expenses along with one-time 
unexpected reimbursements from the State of California for SB 90, State Mandated Cost Reimbursements. The City 
received a total of $243,800 for prior year reimbursements held by the State compared to $1,000 budgeted for the fiscal 
year.  
 
The remainder of the increase to the General Fund is due to a slight decrease in expenses and some minor revenues 
slightly more than expected.  
 
It is important to note that this revenue is a one-time source of revenue and could be used for capital improvement 
projects such as the new animal shelter and/or American Disability Act (ADA) retrofit to the front lobby at City Hall and 
other ADA improvements. 
 
Additionally, the State of California has remitted interest on the SB 90 previously held funds this current fiscal year 
totaling $56,000. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  
 

None Required 
 
Attachments:  

 
A. Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80


	Agenda
	Minutes
	October 7, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Adjusting Monthly Stipend of Planning Commission Members
	Resolution - PC Stipend

	Monthly Investment Report Ending September 30, 2015
	Investment Report

	Presentation of the City of Kerman 2014/2015 Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements
	Staff Report - Auditor's Report


